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December 23, 2011 s el
To the Members of the Board of Selectmen, Board of Finance, Board of Education and Citlzens of the
Town of New Hartford, Connectiout: -

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Town of New Hartford,
CT (ihe “Town") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The appolnted auditors from King, King &
Assaciates, CPAs Certified Public Accountants, have issued thelr oplnion on New Hartford’s financlal
statements for the Fisca! Year 2010-11, which states that the Town's financial statements are Fairly
prasented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The independent auditor's report
is loceted at the front of the financial section of this report. Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD8A) immediaiely follows the independent auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis of the hasic financial statements. The MD&A complements this lefter of
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

This report was prepared by the Town Finance Department under the direction of the First Selectman
with the services of King, King & Assaciates, GPAs as the Town's contractual auditor. Thea report consists
of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town. Management assumes full
responsibility for the compleleness and reliability of the Informatlon contained In this report, based upon a
comprehensive Intarnal confrol framewark that It has sslablished for this purpose. Because the cost of
Internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the abjective Is fo provide reasonable, rather than
absoluts, assurance that the financlal statements are free of any materlal misstatements. As
management, we assert that this financial report I8 complete to the best of our knowledge and bellef,

The Town is required 1o undergo an annual sudit in conformity with the provisions of the Connecticut
General Statutes, the Connacllicut Single Audit Act, Federal Single Audit Act, and the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audis of Siales, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, when applicable, Information related to the Connecticut State Single Audit, Including the
Schedule of Expenditures of Stats Financlal Assistance, findings and recommendations, and audilor's
reparts on the Internal centro! structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are issued
under a separaie cover and are not included in this report. Copies of these reports are on file in the Town
Clerk's office.

Profile of the Government |

Description of the Town

New Hartford borders the City of Torrington to the west, Barkhamsted to the north, Ganton to the east,
and Burlington and Harwinton to the south. The Town was settled In 1733 and incorporated five years
later In October of 1738. Siate routes 44, 202, and 219 slong with numerous town and private roads
raverse New Martford’s 38.3 square miles, Grades kindergarten through six attend local Town schools.
Two of the three Town schools have been renovated in the last 10 years, The renovatlons were funded
primarily through state construction grants and leng-term bonds, which are in the repayment phase. The
bond for Bakerville Gonsolidated School will be fully repaid on September {1, 2013. Grades seven
through twelve sltend Northwestern Reglonal School Distrlot No. 7 In Winsted, whose member towns
include New Hartford, Barkhamsted, Colebraok, and Norfalk. The school bulidings were renovated In
1989, financed primarily through state construction grants and long-term bonds that are being repaid

Telephone: 860-379-3389 - Fax 860-379-0940 - Web: www.town.new-hartford.ct.us
An Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer
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through assessments to the member Towns. Al schools attended by ths residents are widely accepted
to maintain high levels of scholastic achievement.

Many of New Hariford's residents commute to Harford and Waterbury areas to white collar and
management positions. Land use Is characterzed by many large, iimited purpose sites such as the
Nepaug State Forest (1,017.4 acres), Metropolilan District Commission water shed lands (2,481.62
acres), sizable agricullural areas, land acquired as open space, and vacant Jland. The few developments
in Town are consistently moderate to low density single family residences. The Town haes experienced
steady population growth in the last 40 yesrs growing from a population of 3,993 in 1970 to 6,970
according to the 2010 Census,

The Town's principal indusiies ere manufaciure of plumbing supplies, alrcraft parts, elecironic
components, springs, guitars, industrial adhesives, metion conirol products, agriculture and plastics. The
warld famous Ovafion Guitar Company Is headquarered in New Hartford along with a number of smaller
manufacturers and fabrloators. Homa Depoet provides large scale retall of home improvement products.
Recreational sltes, such as the Farmington River for fishing and boating and Skl Sundown for skiing,
attract visitors year round.

Form of Government

New HarHord is governed by ihe Board of Selecimen/Board of Finance/Town Meating form of
govarnment. A three-member Board of Selectmen, elected biennially, serves as the executive body, and
a full-me First Selectman acls as the Town's Chief Executive. The sht-member Board of Finance, In
conjunction with the First Seleclman and the elecled pari-lime Treasurer, is responsible for finences and
for preparing and presenting the annual budget of the Town.

The Town Meeling is the leglsiative body that must approve the annual budget, all special appropriations
or expenditures over $206,000, and all bond and nole authotlzations. Logal elections are held every odd-
numbered year in November. There are two voling districts, but all elected officials serve at-lerge. The
Board of Selectmen assumes offlce four weeks after election and appoints members of varipus Town
boards, commissions, and commiitess. The Board of Educalion appoints the Superintendant of Schools
who Is responsible for administering the Town's educational system.

The Town provides a full range of services, including police and fire prolection; emergency medical
services; highway, parks and recreailon; solid waste disposal; water and sewer; elementary education;
library services; uliliies; and services to the elderly.

The annual budpet serves as the foundation for the Town's financlal ptanning and confrol, The Board of
Selecimen hold public review sessions before approving a proposed budget and submilting It fo the
Board of Finance each year. The Board of Finance revlews the budget with the Board of Seleclmsan and
holds a public hearing in May each year. The Board of Finance may reduce the budgst before
recommending the budget to the annual town budget meeting each year, at which electors adopt the
annual budget uniess a referendurn Is petitioned and the meeting adjoumed to a special budget
raferendum election,

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The Information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
fram the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town of New Harlford operales.

Local Economic Condition and Dutlook
Looal economic Indicators have slowed considerably. The Town is anticipating a reduction in some state

and federal grant funding due to budgset restraints at bath levels. Over the past year the town has utilized
state and federal grants to complete several large Infrastructure projects.



The Town utilized two State grants totaling $500,000 to repair a damaged sewer line on Brook Strest and
build a new sand/salt storage shed In the Industrizl Park, Work on these projects is now complete. Two
additional State grants totaling $400,000 are currenily in the design phase, with the Main Street sewer
project nearing the bid phase for spring 2012 construction. Survey work for the downtown revitalization
grant ($250,000} for the New Hartford Village Center has also been completed, as work gontinues on a

flnal deslgn plan.

The Town is not anticipating any significant increase to the fax base by way of new residents or
businesses. New home construction remeins stagnant, as the economic sliowdown continues feaving all
locel officials cautious relative to new spending initiatives. The First Selectman is committed fo conlinued
pursuit of grant funds to help maintain affordable real eslate taxes.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The Municipal Reserve fund provides financial resources for tha acquisition of major equipment aor the
construction of capital facllities, The Town periodically maintains individual capital projects funds for
special grant funded projects, such as school renovation projects, Over the past fiscal year, the Town did
not pursute any long term debt obligations. In 2010 the Town obtained long-term financing through USDA
to finalize the repayment of the now completed Wastewater Treatment Plant. This $8,950,000 project
was funded through State and Federal Grants and Loans. Final acquisition of this $3,650,000 Federal
Loan will cost residents and taxpayers roughly $195,000 per year with 61 percent of the debt paid for by
Sewer users and 39 percent pald for by the general taxpayers, Appropriations are made on an annual
basis by the Board of Selectmen, Board of Finance and Board of Education within the respective
operating budgets for infrastructure and facility improvements and vehicle and equipment acquisition. The
Wastewater Treatment Plant project was the Town's only active bonded construction project as of June
30, 2010. The Town did ulllize $50,000 in reserve funds avalable through a CRRA seltlement to
purchase a 1989 John Deere road grader. This action was approved at Town Meeting on March 1, 2011
In order to replace an outdated 1862 Caterplliar machine.

Cash and Investment Management Policies and Practices

All cash during the year was malntained in demand accounts. The Town restricts its investment activities
to Instruments that provide, in order of priarity, the greatest safely, liquidity and yield. Of note, the Town
moved to end its banking relationship with Bank of Amerlca who closed its local branch office In April
2011. After extensive research and analysis, on a recommendation of the Town Treasurer, both the
Boards of Selectman and Finance voted to transfer all local accounts to Northwest Caommunity Bank.

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to varlous risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, ar destruction of
assets; errors ar omissions; Injurles to employees, or acts of God. The Town purchases commercial
insurance to cover most potential risks of lass, Nelther the Town nor ils Insurers have settled any clalm
within the past year, which have exceeded the Town's insurance coverage. There were no significant
changes In coverage from the prior year, and no setfiements have exceeded Insurance coverage In the
last three years. Additional Information of the Town of New Hartford's risk management activity can be
found in Note 7 of the notes to the finandial statements.

Pension Trust Fund Operations

The Town has a Pension Trust Fund for Town employees, which Is a single employer, defined benefit,
noncontributory plan that is administered by the Town. Board of Education employees that are excluded
from this plan are parlicipants In the State Teachers Retirement System. Teacher pension coniributions
provided and managed by the State of Connacticut on behalf of the Town are disclosed in the Town’s
financlal statements but are not a part of the Town's Pension Trust Funds.



The Town's pension assefs are Invested in Cash Equivalents (Money Funds) and various Mutual Funds.
These accounts consisting are managed by Investment professionals. The flrm Is responsible for
coordinating and monitoring the management of the investments within guldelines contained in an
approved invesiment plan. A five-member Pension Commiltee is appolnted by the Board of Selectmen
and meels querterly to review Investment peformance and assel allocation decisions. The investment
policy end aliocation guidelines are adjusted on & periodic basis by the Board of Selectmen upon
recommendation by the Penslon Committes. Over the past three fiscal years, the economy has had a
significant Impact on the value of the assets of the pension fund. In 2010/2011 substantial gains were
mads thal off-sel past losses. Over the past year, the pension fund balance increased from $1,601,502
lo $1,862,265 as of June 30, 2011, The Town's annual pension fund contribution for the past year was
$173,016, 102% of the recommended payment. Over the past year changes to union contracts were
agreed to that wili require future town employees to participate in defined contifbution plans.

Independent Audit

Connecticut General Statutes require that all municipallies have thelr accounts audited annually by an
independent public accountant as required under Connscticut General Statutes Section 7-382. The
Board of Finance appointed King, King & Assoclates, CPAs to conduct the 2010-2011 Town a2udit. The
independent audttor's report is Included In this report.

Certificate of Achievement

This report has been prepared following the guldelines of the Government Finance Officers Asscciation
(GFOA) of the United States and Canada and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The GFOA awards a Ceriificate of Achlevement for Excellence in Financlal Reporiing to governmental
units that publish an easily readable and effislenfly organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
whose contents conform to program stendards. Such veporis musl salisfy both generally accepted
accouniing principles and applicable legal regquirements, The GFOA awarded a Cerlliicate of
Achievement for Excellence to the Town of New Hartford for the year ended June 30, 2010, This was the
second straight year that the Town recelved this prestigious award.

A Cerificate of Achisvement, which s valld for one year only, Is the highest form of recognition in the
area of governmental accounting and financial reporting, and ils afteinment represents a significant
accomplishment for a govermnment unit and its management. We belleve that our current CAFR continues
to meet the Geriificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and will continue to submif to the GFOA
to determine ellgibility for yet another certificate. In an effort to maintain high reporting standards, the
First Selectiman will seek professional development opporiunifies for bookkeeping/finance and
administrative siaff. } i :
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independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Finance
Town of New Hartford, CT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each maijor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the Town of New
Hartiord, CT as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Town of
New Hariford, CT’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Town of New Hartford, CT's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepisd in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemniment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of New Hariford, CT, as of June 30, 201 1,
and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
22, 2011, on our consideration of the Town of New Hariford, CT's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the resuits of our audit.

170 Holabird Avenue, P.O. Box 898, Winsted, CT 06098
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates of Amerlca require that the
management's discussion and analysls on pages 10 through 16 and the supplementary pension plan
information on pages 48 and 49 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basis financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical content. We have
applled certain limited procedures to the supplementary information required by accounting principles
generaily accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about methods of preparing the information and comparing the information the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquires, the basis financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basis financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the infarmation because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of New Hariford, CT's financial statements as a whole. The
introductory sections, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, statistical section
and other supplementary information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The supplemental and
combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures appiied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

%‘K»ﬁ & Agsovioder

King, King & Associates, CPAs
Winsted, CT
December 22, 2011



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, CT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

As management of the Town of New Hartford, CT, we offer readers of the Town of New Hartford, CT's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of New
Hartford, CT for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the Town of New Hariford, CT exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $23,589,342 (net asseis). Of this amount, $1,383,883 (unrestricied net
assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. -
Restricted net assets of $28,944 represent funds held in the Community Investment.

+ The government's total net assets increased by $3,812,490. This increase is attributable
primarily to an increase in capital assets and a reduction in debt.

» As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of New Hartford, CT's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $4,973,319, a decrease of $3,574,430 in
comparison with the prior year. The decrease was primarily attributable to the repayment of
short-term financing in connection with completion of the Waste Water Treaiment Plant. Of
this amount, $3,082,427 is available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned
fund balance).

= At the end of the current fiscal year, assigned and unassigned fund balance for the General
Fund was $3,546,739 or 16.2% percent of total General Fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statemenis

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of New Hartford,
CT's basic financial stalements. The Town of New Harford, CT's basic financial statements comprise
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also coniains other supplementary information in
addition {o the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial stalements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of New Hartford, CT's finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town of New Hartford, CT's assets and
liabilites, with the difference between the two reported as net asseis. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator whether the financial position of the Town of
New Hartford, CT is improving or deteriorating.

The stalement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets are
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
future cash inflows (revenues) and outilows (expenditures).

10



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, CT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of New Hartford,
CT that are principally supported by grants and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-lype activities). The govemmental activities of the Town of New Hartford,
CT include education, public safety, general government and highway.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17-18 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain controf
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of New
Hartford, CT, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demaonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Alf of the funds of the Town of New Hartford, CT
can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of gavernmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparisan between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town of New Hartford, CT maintains thirteen (13) individual govemmental funds, Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund.

The Town of New Hariford, CT adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A
budgetary comparison statement has been pravided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance

with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-23 of this report.
Proprietary Funds: The Town maintains one proprietary fund. Proprietary funds provide the same
type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The propristary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water Pollution Control Authority.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-26 of this report.

11



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, CT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town of New Hartford, CT's
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-28 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements can be found on pages 29-47 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial

position. In the case of the Town of New Hartford, CT, assets exceeded liabilities by $23,599,342 at
the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Current and Other Assets % 5871677 % 9,323,083 $ 280607 $ 308220 § 6,152,284 § 9,631,303
Capital Assets 15,764,415 15,680,940 12,083,675 10,613,558 27,858,090 26,294,498
Total Assets 21,636,092 25 004,023 12,374,282 10,921,778 34,010,374 35,925,801
Long-term Liabilities : 6,060,691 12,604,627 3,075,915 3,115,018 9,136,606 15,719,645
Other Liahilities 1,224 484 377,734 49,942 41,570 1,274,428 419,304
Total Liabilities 7,285,175 12,982 361 3,125 857 3,156,588 10,411,032 16,138,949
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,
net of Related Debt 10,921,448 10,236,647 11,265,057 7,588,807 22,186,505 17,826,554
Restricted 28,944 24 480 - - 28,044 24 480
Unrestricted 3,400,525 1,760,535 (2,016,632) 175,283 1,383,893 1,935,818
Total Net Assets $ 14,350,917 § 12,021662 § 9248425 $ 7765190 § 23599342 §$ 19,786,852

The restricted portion of the Town of New Hartford, CT's net assets represents net assets restricted
for Community Investments. The balance of unrestricted net assets ($7,172,926) may be used to
meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizen and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of New Hartford, CT is able to report positive balances
in all categories of net assets, for the government as a whole.

Net assets of governmental activities increased by $2,329,255 during this fiscal year. This increase is
primarily attributable to the receipt of grant funds related to the wastewater treatment plant upgrade
project to the New Hartford Water Pollution Control Authority, STEAP Grant funds received for the
Sand/Salt Shed and Brook Street Sewer Projects, and repayment of both general obligation and
WPCA debt. In addition, the General Fund received $954,570 of grant funds from the WPCA as
reimbursement for costs refated to the WWTP.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, CT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Net assets of business-type activities increased by $1,483,235 during this fiscal year. This increase is
primarily attributable to the completion of the wastewater treatment plant.

REVENUES
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Unrestricted Grants
Investment Income
Rental Income
Other Income
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Govermnmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Highway
Planning and Development
Health and Welfare
Libraries
Parks and Recreation
Commissions and Agencies
Education

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer System

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets
Before Transfers

Transfers

Change in Net Assets
Beginning Net Assets

Ending Net assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$ 16,980,778 $ 16,845,097 § - % - % 16,990,778 § 16,845,097
236,197 232,686 - - 236,197 232,686
30,162 37,123 - - 30,162 37,123
45,901 44,319 - - 45901 44,319
27,261 88,141 - - 27,261 838,141
484,315 511,204 617,682 625,768 1,101,997 1,136,972
4,382,922 4,314,244 - - 4,382,922 4,314,244
1,450,936 89,973 2,697,580 - 4,148,518 88,873
23,648,472 22,162,787 3,315,262 625,768 26,963,734 22,788 555
2,257 960 2,185,561 - - 2,257,960 2,185,561
738,279 538,618 - - 738,279 638,618
1,834,332 1,636,007 - - 1,834,332 1,636,007
164,289 197,609 - - 164,289 187,608
296,489 317,245 - - 296,489 317,245
259,000 259,000 “ - 259,000 258,000
317,543 306,023 - - 317,543 306,023
64,330 76,987 - - 64,330 76,987
16,341,565 16,307,462 - - 16,341,565 16,307,462
- - 877,458 667,248 877,458 667,246
22,273,787 21,924,512 877,458 667,246 23,151,245 22,591,758
1,374,685 238,275 2,437,804 (41,478) 3,812,489 196,797
954,570 (2,817,522) {954,570) 2,817,522 - -
2,329,255 (2,579,247) 1,483,234 2,776,044 3,812,489 196,797
12,021,662 14,600,909 7,765,191 4,988,148 19,786,853 19,590,055

§ 14350917 § 12021662

§ 5,248,425 § 7,765,190

$ 23588,342 § 19,786,852

Governmental Activities: Governmental activities increased the Town of New Hartford, CT's net
assets by $ 2,329,255. Seventy-two percent (72%) of the revenues of the Town were derived from
property taxes, followed by twenty-five percent (25%) from grants and contributions, then two percent
(2%) from charges for services, then one percent (1%) from other general revenues and investment

earnings.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, CT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Major revenue factors include:
e New STEAP Grant Awards
e Pick up in Special Ed Student based supplement
¢ Town Clerk fees down
¢ No Cleanwater Funding in this fiscal year
» Short term interest down due to interest rate decline.

For Governmenial Activities, 74% of the Town’s expensas relate to education, 4% relate to public
safety and health and welfare, 8% relate to public works/capital outlay, and the remaining 14% relates
to government and community services, administration, and other areas.

Interest expense has been directly allocated to the specific related function. Additional information
regarding interest expense can be found on page 42.

Major expense factors Include:
« Increase in Salt and Sand expense to properly reflect usage.
o RRDD#1 implemented a 4” quarter assessment reduction.
= Highway Department continues to have significant tree removal issues as well as maintenance
& repair of large capital assets.
» Paving town roadways was a priority as well.
» Reduction in assessments for New Hartford Volunieer Ambulance Association.

Other significant grant/projects included in governmental activities include:
¢ DECD Housing Rehab Grant
» Construction of the Sand/Salt Shed.
» Brook Sireet Sewer repair.

Business-Type Activities: Business-type activities increased the Town of New Hartford, CT's net
assets by $1,483,235. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenues of the business-type activities
were derived from charges for services. During the year the New Hariford Water Pollution Control
Authority added $1,743,010 of construction costs funded by grants and long-term debt, and
transferred grant funds to the General Fund totaling $954,570. This amount was less the portion of
the long-term financing for the project.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earfier, the Town of New Hariford, CT uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the Town of New Hariford, CT's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town of New Hartford, CT’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending

at the end of the fiscal year.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, CT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of New Hariford, CT's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $4,973,319, a decrease of $3,574,430 in comparison with the prior
year. 62.0% of this total amount constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending
at the government's discretion.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of New Hariford, CT. At the end of the
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $3,082,427, As a measure of
the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14.10 percent of fotal
General Fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance is less than amounts reported as unreserved in
the prior year due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which has further classified unreserved fund balance into two
categories: Assigned and Unassigned. Assigned Fund Balance is also available for use in the
General Fund at the direction of the Boards of Finance and Selectmen. The total Unassigned and
Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund is $3,546,739.

The fund balance of the Town of New Hartford, CT's General Fund decreased by $3,460,513 during
the current fiscal year. Key factors in this decrease are as follows:

» Repayment of the Interim Bond Anticipation Note financing of $8,900,000.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

» Projected Revenues were underestimated and exceeded expectations, therefore the budgeted
use of $344,733 of surplus was not needed.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The Town of New Hartford, CT's investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2011, amounts to $27,858,090 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes Jand and buildings, vehicles, machinery and
equipment. Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Roof Replacement at Bakerville School
Winchester Road Bridge replacement
Brook Street Sewer Project

Sand/Sait Shed Project

Brown's Corner Parking improvements

¢ * & 8 9
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, CT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Governmental Activities: 2011 2010
Land & Infrastructure 7,373,238 $ 7,962,350
Construction in Progress 411,938 3,372
Building & Improvements 7,696,717 7,302,952
Vehicles 153,355 238,889
Machinery & Equipment 129,168 173,377
Total $ 15764417 $ 15,680,940
2011 2010
Business-type activities:
Land and Infrastructure 3 11,507 $ 11,507
Construction in Progress - 6,303,132
Buildings and Improvements 12,082,167 4,298,919

$ 12093674 $ 10,613,558

Additional information on the Town of New Hartford, CT's capital assets can be found in Note 3 on
pages 38-40 of this report.

Long-Term Debt: The Town of New Hartford, CT has the following obligations:
2011 2010

Compensated absences $ 407,032 % 401,860

Premium on Bond 967 1,293
Pension benefit obligation 144,550 144,874
Bond Anticipation Notes 3,594,000 8,800,000
G.0O. Bonds 4,847,000 5,573,000
Loans 723,618 737,251

Total $ 9,817,167 §$ 15,758,278

The Town of New Hartford, CT's total debt decreased by $5,941,111 during the current fiscal year,
primarily due to the repayment of a bond anticipation note for $8,800,000 for interim financing related
to the continued renovation of the wastewater freatment plant. Additional information on the Town of
New Hartford, CT's long-term debt can be found in Note 3 on page 41-43 of this repori.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rales

o The Town will use $144,979 of fund balance to finance the subsequent years budget.
e State grants are expected to fiuctuate due to lack of revenue sources.
e Current recession has people cautious relative to spending.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of New Hartford, CT’s

finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Finance Board, Town of New Hartford, 530 Main Street, P.O. Box 316, New Hartford, CT

06057.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD

Staiement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type
Agtivities Activities Total
Assets
Currant Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,431,536 51,408 4,522,044
State and Federal Grants Receivable 34,333 - 34,333
Taxes and Assessments Receivable 383,622 183,199 572,821
Prepald ltems 19,515 - 18,515
Interest Receivable 107,104 - 107,104
Inventories 3,177 - 3,177
Total Current Assets 4,979,287 280,607 5,259,894
Noncurrant Assets:
Restricted for Wastewater Treatment Plant Project
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 452,080 - 452,090
Deferred L.oans Recelvable 371,793 - 371,793
Investrments 68,507 - 68,507
Capital Assels:
Nondepreciable Assets 6,052,981 11,507 6,064,488
Depreciable Buildings and Equipment, net 9,711,434 12,082,168 21,793,602
Total Noncurrent Assets 16,656,805 12,093,675 28,750,480
Total Assets 21,636,092 12,374,282 34,010,374
Liabiiltles
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 417,374 10,839 428,213
Accrued Expenses 73,607 - 73,607
Deferred Grant Revenue 33,050 - 33,050
Other Payables 58,995 - 58,995
Currant Portion of Long-Term Obligations 641,458 39,103 680,561
Total Current Liabllities 1,224,484 49,942 1,274,426
Neon-Current Liabilities
internal Balances (2,266,400) 2,286,400 -
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Obligations 8,346,124 789,515 9,135,639
Other Non-Current Liabilities 967 - 067
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,060,691 3,075,915 9,136,606
Total LiabHities 7,285,175 3,125,857 10,411,032
Net Assets
Invesied In Capital Assets, netf of related debt 10,921,448 11,265,057 22,186,505
Restricted for Community Investment 28,944 - 28,944
Unrestricted 3,400,525 (2,016,632) 1,383,893
Total Net Assets 3 14350,817 § 0,248,425 § 23,599,342

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFQORD
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
State and Federal Grants Receivable
Deferred Loans Receivable
Prepaid {tems
Interfund Receivables
Internal Loans - WPCA
Property Taxes Receivable, Net
Inventories
Restricted for Wastewater Treatment Plant Project
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Toial Assels

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue

Interfund Payables

Due 1o Other Beneficiaries

Due to State of CT

Total Liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable: Inventories
Restricted for:

Capital Projects

Historical Documents

Small Cities Housing Rehabilitation

Community Investiment
Committed to:

Municipal Reserve

Dog Fund

Open Space
Assigned (See Note 8)
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Nonmajor
Governmenial

General Funds Total
$ 3,859,150 5 572,386 $ 4,431,536
- 68,507 68,507
34,333 - 34,333
- 371,793 371,793
18,515 - 19,515
62,578 38,268 100,846
130,000 - 130,000
383,622 - 383,622
- 3,177 3477
452,090 - 452,080
$ 4,941,288 $ 1,054,131 $ 5,895,419
406,302 11,072 417,374
73,607 . 73,607
371,278 - 371,278
38,268 62,578 100,846
53,004 - 53,004
- 5,991 5,881
942,459 79,641 1,022,100
- 3,177 3,177
452,000 - 452,090
- 9,150 9,150
- 426,279 426,279
- 28,844 28,944
- 188,132 188,132
- 2,986 2,988
- 127,555 127,555
464,312 188,267 652,579
3,082,427 - 3,082,427
3,998,829 074,490 4,973,319
$ 4,941,288 $ 1,054,131 $ 5,995,419

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2011

Fund balances reported in governmental funds Balance Sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the government- wide
Statement of Net Assets are difierent because:

The governmental fund Balance Sheet includes ravenues that wili only
be available to pay current period liabilities. Adjustments are necessary
to accrue receivables for all earned revenues.

Interest on laxes
Long-term Interfund Advances

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reparted in the funds.
Capital Assets
Accumnulated Depreciation

Deferred revenue for property taxes and granis are reported in the
funds but accrued as revenue in the government-wide statements
and added to net assets.

Froperty taxes

Long-term liabifities are nof due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the fund statements,
General obligation bonds
Premium on general obligation bonds
Compensated absences
Fension obligations

Net assets of governmental activities

$ 4,973,318

107,104
2,156,400

36,463,984
{20,698,569)

338,228

(8,438,000)
(967)
(407,032)

(144,550}

$14,350,917

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues
Property Taxes
Unrestricted Grants and Contributions
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Charges for Services
Other Income
investment Earnings
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current
General Government
Public Safety
Highway
Pianning and Development
Health and Welfare
Libraries
Parks and Recreation

- Commissions/Agencies
Education

Debt Service

Capital Expenditures

Total Expenditures

Excess/(deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other Financing Sources/{Uses)
Proceeds from Financing
Repayment of BAN Financing
Transfers from Enterprise Funds
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Bailances - Ending

Nonmajor
Governmental
General Funds Total

$ 17,002,857 $ - § 17,002,857
236,197 - 236,197
4,241,920 220,524 4,462,444
1,420,735 30,201 1,450,536
176,001 208,981 474 982
54,954 18,208 73,162
16,183 13,653 29,838
23,148,847 581,567 23,730,414
1,542,995 37,531 1,580,526
574,430 10,555 584,985
1,493,268 - 1,493,268
144 366 - 144,366
269,942 - 269,842
259,000 - 259,000
92,718 173,871 266,589
60,385 3,945 64,330
16,105,201 171,287 16,276,498
785,030 159,140 944 170
656,467 413,273 1,068,740
21,983,802 968,612 22,053,414
1,165,045 (388,045} 777,000
3,594,000 - 3,594,000
{8,900,000) - (B,900,000)
954,570 - 9k4 570
3,372 347.500 350,872
{277,500) {73,372) (350,872)
(4,625,558} 274,128 {4,351,430)
(3,460,513) (113,917) (3,574,430)
7,450,342 1,088,407 8,547,748
3,008,820 §$ 974490 § 4,973,319

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement

21



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Actlvities are different hecause:

(Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However,
In the Statement of Activitles, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated usefut lives as depreclation expense.

Capital expenditures
Depreciation Expense

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financlal resources are reparted as deferred ravanues in the funds.
Accordingly, an adjustment is necessary o reconcile amounts reported
as interest receivable in the government-wide Statement of Net Assats
and as deferred revenue in the fund Balance Shest.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Staternent of Net
Assets. Repayment of debt principal s an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabllitles In the Statement of
Net Assets.

BAN Repayments

Bond Proceads

Bonding costs are amortized ovar the life of the related obligation
General obligation bond principal payments

Some granis provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but reduce grant recelvables in the Statement of Net Assets. This is
the amount of current economic resources rectasslfied as a balance
sheet adjustment,

Compensated absences and pension contributions are expanded in the
funds when resources are used, but are expensed in the Statement
of Activities when the liability is incurred. This is the amount by which
the accrued liability exceeded the resources expendad.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities:

The notes to the financlal statements are an Integral part of this statement
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$ (3,574,430)

782,726
(698,251)

(12,079)

8,900,000
{3,584,000)
326
601,000

{70,189)

(4,848)

$ 2,329,255



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Differences
QOriginal Amended Budgetary Basis  Over (Under)
Revenues
Taxes $16,610,720 $16,610,720 $ 17,029,937 $ 419,297
intergovernmental Revenue 3,887,909 3,887,908 4,066,600 178,691
Fees, Fines, and Permits 166,080 166,080 176,001 9,821
Renial iIncome 42,849 42,849 45,901 3,062
Other Revenue 118,587 118,587 9,053 (109,534)
Investment Earnings 20,000 20,000 16,183 (3,817)
Surplus to Finance Budget 355,733 355,733 - (355,733)
Total Revenues 21,201,878 21,201,878 21,343,675 141,797
Expenditures
Current
General Government 1,600,458 1,627,508 1,539,365 88,143
Public Safety 621,322 629,092 573,107 56,885
Highways 1,367,117 1,494,307 1,494,307 -
Planning and Development 168,986 145,576 145,499 77
Health and Welfare 325,576 268,687 268,217 470
Libraries 259,600 259,000 259,000 -
Parks and Recreation 91,606 91,606 86,688 4,918
Commissions/Agencies 08,485 80,874 80,455 10,419
Education 15,488,673 15,503,673 15,475,367 28,306
Debi Service
Principal 455,500 455,500 455,000 500
Interest 207,655 207,655 207,655 -
Capital Expenditures
Total Capital Expenditures 427,500 427,500 620,368 (192,868)
Total Expenditures 21,201,878 21,201,878 21,205,028 (3,160}
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ - 3 - $ 138,647 § 138,647

Fund Balances, beginning

Fund Balances, ending

$ 3,519,887
3 3,658,534

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Staternent of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2011

Enterprise Fund
Water Pollution Ceantrol Authority

Assets
Current assets:
Cash 3 91,408
Accounts receivable, nat 189,199
Total current assets 280,607
MNoncurrent assets:
Property, plant, and equipment, nat of dapreciation 12,093,675
Total Assets 12,374,282
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 10,839
Current portion of long-term debt 39,103
Total current lisbllities 48,942
‘Noncurrent liabllities:
Interfund Advances 2,286,400
Long-term noles payable 709,515
General obligation bonds 80,000
Total noncurrent liabllities 3,075,915
Total Liabilities 3,125 857
et Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,265,057
Unrestricted (2,016,632)
Total Net Assets 5 9,248,425

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Enterprise Fund

Water Pojlution Control Authority

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services:
Usage assessments 5 614,717
Sewer ling assessments 2,965
Total operating revenues 617,682

OPERATING EXPENSES
General operations 457,398
Plart management fees 20,502
Capltal improvement 747
Repairs and maintenance 95,879
Depreciation 262,894
Total operating expenses B37.420
Operating incoms/(loss) (219,738)

NONOPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES)

Grant Income 2,697,580
Interest expense {40,037)
Total nonoperating revenues/(expenses) 2,657,543
Income/{loss) befora transiers 2,437,805
Transfer to General Fund {954,570)
Change in net assels 1,483,235

Total net assets - beginning 7,765,190
Total net assets - ending & 8,248,425

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statemenis
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Enterprise Fund

Waler Pollution Control Authority

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers % 645,286
Payments to suppliers {528,819}
Net cash provided by operating activities 116,487
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: -

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Principal paid on capital debt (38,633)
Interest paid on capital debit {(40,037)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities {78,670)

Cash flows from investing activities: -

- Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 37,797
Balances - beginning of the ysar 53,611
Balances - end of tha year 3 81,408
Displayed as: Cash & 81,408

Reconciliation of operating iIncome/(loss} to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Oparating income/{loss) 5 {219,738)
Adjustments to reconcile incoms to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 262,894
Change in assetls and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable, nst 27,604
Prepaid Expensas 37,805
Accounts payable 71802
Net cash provided by operating activities 3 116,467

Noncash capital iransactions
Contributions of Capital Assets from the General Fund $ 1,743,010

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Pension Agency
Trust Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - § 65,514
Investmentis:

Short-Term Investments 38,601 -

Mutual Funds 1,823,664 -
Total Assets 1,962,265 65,514
Llabilities and Net Assets

Lizhilities:

Fiduciary Deposits - 65,514
Total Liabilities - 65,514
Net Assets

Held in Trust for Pension Benefits 1,062,265 -
Total Net Assets $ 19622656 B -

The notes to the financia!l statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Pension Trust Fund

Additions
Employer Contributions $§ 173,341
Total Contrbutions 173,341

Investment Income:

Interest and Dividends 57,226
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 273,786
Total Investment Income 331,12
Less: Investment Expense 10,643
Net Invesiment Income 320,369
Total Additions 493,710

Deductions
Pension Benefits Paid 117,879
Total Deductions 117,879
Change in Net Assets 375,831
Net Assets - Beginning 1,586,434
Net Assets - Ending $ 1,862,265

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entily

The Town of New Hartford, CT was incorporated in 1738 under the provisions of the Connecticut
General Statutes. The Town operates under the Board of Selectmen, Town Meeting, and Board of
Finance form of government. The Town provides a wide range of services, including the following:
public safety, public works, public health and weifare, parks and recreation, education, and water
sewer utilities, Education services are provided by Regional School District #7, of which the towns of
Barkhamsted, New Hartford, Neorfolk, and Colebrook are members. Town appropriations o the school
district are determined by a separate taxpayer approved budget and the percentage of New Hartford
residents attending the District's schools.

The Legislative authority of the Town is vested in the Town Meeting. The First Selectman is the chief
executive, chief administrative officer and budget-raking authority of the Town. The Board of Finance
is responsible for revising the proposed budget and submitting the final budget to the Town Meeting.
The Board of Finance is also responsible for eslablishing the annual tax rate. The Town has the
power to incur indebtedness by issuing bonds or notes as provided by the Connecticut General
Statuies.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town relating to the funds included in the accompanying
combined financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America applicable to state and local governments. The more significant accounting policies
of the Town are described below.

The Town's combined financial statements include the accounts of all Town controlled operations. As
required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity
include those of the Town of New Hartford, CT (the primary government) and its component units.
Component units include all organizations for which the government is considered financially
accountable and other organizations which by their hature and significance of their relationship with
the primary government would cause the financial statements to be incomplete or misleading if
excluded. Currently, there are no entities considered component units of the Town. The Town
includes all funds, agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities that are controlled by or dependent
on the Town's executive and legislative branches.

The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have been formed under
applicable State laws or separate and distinct units of government apart from the Town of New
Hartford, CT.

Based upon the foregoing criteria, the following organization is not considered part of the Town and is
excluded from the accompanying financial statements:

Regional School District #7

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities are
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Notes to the Financial Statements

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the revenues of a given function or
segment offset direct program expenses, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program reventes are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statemenis. Major
individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements,

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Staterments Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financiat
statements (except for Agency funds). Agency funds have no measurement focus. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing
of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
regquirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized
when they become measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Exceptions to this general rule include: voluntary non-exchange transactions when all
eligibility requirements have been met. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is
incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include: compensated absences, debt service, and claims
and judgments, which are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes when levied, expenditure reimbursement-type grants, charges for services, licenses,
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government, or

specifically identified.
The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another manner.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The New Hartford Water Pollution Control Authority accounts for the activity of the Authority.
Tha Authority operates the water distribution system and sewage treatment systems for a
portion of the Town's residents.

Additionally, the government reports the following fiduciary fund types:

The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for
pension benefit payments to qualified employees.

Agency Funds account for taxpayer deposits and monies held as a custodian for outside

groups and agencies.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Notes to the Financial Statements

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1988,
generally are foliowed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements o the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Boards. Governments alsa have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.
The Town has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule include charges between certain Town functions
because the elimination of these charges would distort the direct cosis and program revenues
reported.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the New Hartford Water Pollution Control Authority are charges to customers for services. The fund
also recognizes as operating revenue the hookup fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenuss and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for certain expenses, the Town
expends restricted resources first and uses unrestricted resources when the restricted funds are

depleted.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
dale of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General
Statutes. The Town maintains separate accounts with depositories where necessary. Cash applicable
to a particular fund is readily identifiable. Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various
interest-bearing accounts, certificates of deposit, and pooled investment funds which may be deemed
to be cash equivalents based on maturity date or availability of conversion to cash. Cash andcash
equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value and have maturities of three months or
less. The above definition of cash applies to the proprietary funds statement of cash flows.

Receivables and Payables: All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate,
are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected io be uncollectible. The Town has established
an allowance for estimated uncollectible property taxes in the amount of $10,000. Property taxes are
assessed of October 1 and billed the following July. Real and personal property bills are payable in
two installments, July 1 and January 1. Motor vehicle taxes are payable in one installment on July 1,
with the Motor vehicle supplemental bills payable on January 1. Outstanding real estate tax accounts
are liened each year prior to June 30. Assessments for real and personal property, including motor
vehicles, are computed at seventy percent of the market value.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Notes to the Financial Statements

Investments: In general, State of Connecticut Statutes allow the Town to invest in obligations of the
United States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other
interests in any custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment
company or investment trust, in obligations of any state or political subdivision rated within the top two
rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of the State of
Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any nationally
recognized rating service. The trust funds may also invest in certain real estate mortgages, in certain
savings banks or savings and loan associations, or in stocks or bonds or other securities selected by
the trustee.

Investments are reported at fair value. Shori-term investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value. investments that do not have an established market are reported at
astimated fair values. :

Invenltories: inventories in the School Cafeteria Fund are reported st cost using the first-in, first-out
method, and are recorded as expenditures when consumed, rather than when purchased.

Advances to and from Other Funds: Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either
Interfund receivables and payables arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds
affected in the period in which transactions are executed.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include equipment, fixtures, and other long-lived assets, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assels are
recorded af historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Maijor outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assats are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assels Years
Buildings & improvements 7-40
Land Improvements 10-39
Infrastructure 18-39
Vehicles 3-10
Machinery & Equipment 3-10
Furniture & Fixtures 7-10

Compensated Absences: Employees accrue vacation and sick leave based upon a prescribed
formula. For all Town employees, vacation and sick time may be accumulated and paid upon death,
retirement, or termination. The Town has a limit on the accumulation of 121 days. All compensated
ahsences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured,
for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Notes to the Financial Statements

Long-Term Obligations: In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective Interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

Long-Term Debt: Is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when it is due or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other
long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial
resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund.

Fund equity and nel assets— In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified in
the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — This category groups all capital assets,
including infrastructurs, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are athributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduces this category.

Restricted Net Assets - This category presents external restrictions impesed by creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws or reguiations or other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets — This category represents the net assets of the Town, which are not
restricted for any project or other purpose.

In the fund financial statements, fund balances of governmental funds are classified in the following
five separate categories:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — Indicates amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form, or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Examples are items that are not expected to be converted to cash including prepaid
expenditures and permanent fund principal.

Restricted Fund Balance — Indicates amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. The
spending constraints placed on the use of fund balance amounts are extermnally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Commitied Fund Balance — Indicates amounts that can be used only for specific purposes

pursuant to constraints imposed by formal budgetary action of the Board of Finance and Town
Meeting in accordance with provisions of the Connecticut General Statutes.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Notes to the Financial Statements

Assigned Fund Balance - Indicates amounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by
informal action of the Board of Selectman or Board of Finance.

Unassigned Fund Balance ~ Represenis the remaining fund balance after amounts are set
aside for all other classifications.

The Town has not established a formal palicy for its use of restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, unassigned) fund balance; howaver, the Town generally used restricted fund balance first if
the expenditure meets the restricted purpose, followed by committed, assigned and unassighed
amounts.

The Town has not formally enacted legislation or Board policies establishing stabilization funds or
requiring it to maintain a minimum fund balance.

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information and Accounting

The Town of New Hartford, CT follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected

in the financial statements:

» A proposed operating budget is submitted for the fiscal year, The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

e Public hearings are conducted in the Town to obtain taxpayer comments.

+ The budget is legally enacted through passage at a Town Meeting.

« The Board of Finance is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within
any fund; however, any additional appropriations exceeding $20,000 to any one department

must be approved at a Town meeting.

e Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund.

« Al noncontinuing appropriations lapse at year-end. Capital appropriations do not lapse until
completion of the applicable projects.

e Encumbrance accounting is not used.
Budgeted amounts are presented, or as amended by the Board of Finance and the Board of
Education during the course of the year. Annual budgets are adopted only for the General Fund.

Program budgets are established for certain funds not budgeted annually. All appropriations lapse at
year-end, except for capital appropriations.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Statement of Revenue and Expenditures-Budget (non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual-
General Fund represents comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary
basis. Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ
significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles, a reconciliation of differences in excess of revenues and expenditures and
other sources of financial resources with expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2011 is presented

as follows:

Other
Financing
Sowrces/ Net
Revenues Expenditures {Uses) Change
Balance, Budgetary Basis $ 21343675 § 21,205,028 % - § 138,647
Revenue Adjustments for:
Property Taxes Available (27,080) - - (27,080)
Grant Revenue 1,268,040 - - 1,266,040
CT Teacher's Retirement 566,212 - - 566,212
Procaeds from Financing - - 3,594,000 3,694,000
Contributions from Enterprise Funds - - 954,570 954,570
Expenditure Adjustments for:
Transfers Out - (272,500) (274,128) {1,628)
Grant Expenditures - 199,563 - {199,563)
CT Teacher's Retirement - 566,212 - [566,212)
BAN Repayment - - (9,022,375) (9,022,375)
Other Expenditures - 163,124 - {163,124)
Balance, GAAP Basis $ 23148847 § 21,861,427 3§ (4,747,833) §(3,460,513)

Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2011, capital expenditures exceeded appropriations, which were funded
by an additional STEAP grant.

NOTE 3 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

The deposits of public funds are controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes. The following is a
summary of cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2011.

Detalled Cash Notes on all Funds

Governmenial Fidugiary Proprietary Total
Funds Funds Funds
Demand Accounts § 4,883,626 3 65,514 5 91,408 5 5,040,548
Total 4 BB83,626 65,514 91,408 $ 5,040,548
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Deposits and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Town's deposits may not be returned to It. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial
credit risk. At year-end, the Town's carrying amount of deposits was $5,040,548 and the bank
balance was $5,170,788. Of the bank balance, Federal Depository Insurance Gorporation covered
$501,298. As of June 30, 2011, $4,669,490 of the Town's bank balance of $5,170,788 was exposed

to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized 4,152 541
Uninsured and collateral held by
pledging bank's Trust department
not in the Town's name 516,949
$ 4,669,490

Interest Rate Risk: The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest

rates.

Credjt Risk: The Town has no investment policy that limits the investment choices further than the
State Statutes listed above. As of June 30, 2011, the Town's special revenue and fiduciary funds held
$ 2,030,772 in mutual funds for which ratings were not available at the end of the current fiscal year.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments; This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the countarparty,
the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are
in possession of an outside party. The Town's investments are held in various trustee accounts in the
Town's name. The Town's mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk, as the Town's
investment is not directly exposed to custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2011, the Town had the following investments;
Investment Maturities

Fair Value Less Than 1 yr. 1-5 yrs.
Short-term Funds 3 38,601 5 38601 % -
Mutual Funds 1,882,171 N/A, N/A
Total Investments $ 2,030,772 % 38,601 B -
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Receivables
Recelvables as of year-end for the town’s governmental and business-type activities, including

applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

Property Taxes* $ 383622 $ - § 303622
Water Assessments - 184,199 164,199
Deferied Loans Receivable 371,793 - 371,793
State & Federal Grants 34,333 - 34,333
Total Recelvables 799,748 194,199 993,047
Allowance for Tax Collection Losses (10,000) (5,000} {15,000}
Tolals § 789,748 § 189,199 % 978,947

* a significant portion of these recelvables are not expected to be collected within one year

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recoghition in connection with resources that have been received, but not earned. At the end
of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue
reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Ungarned

Delinguent property taxes receivable (General Fund) $338,228 5 -
Deferred grant revenue - 33,050
$338.228  $.33.050

Inventories
Inventorles are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. Governmental and proprietary

funds record costs of inventories as expenditures and expenses when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Inventories at year-end consisted of:
Governmental

Activities
Nonmajor
Funds
Food inventory % 3,177
Total $ 3,177
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Interfund Transfers, Receivables and Payables

Transfer to
Nonmajor General
Transfers From Funds Fund Total
General Fund $ 277500 % - § 277,500
Nonmajor Funds 70,000 3,372 73,372
New Hartford WPCA - 854,570 954,570
Total $ 347,500 § 957,942 § 1,305,442

The transfer to nonmajor funds from the General Fund reflects budgeted amounts for capital
expenditures transferred to the Municipal Reserve Fund,

The transfer to the General Fund from the nonmajor funds reflects amounts transferred from
Municipal Reserve for a return of funds due to a reduction of budgeted project costs.

The transfer from the New Hartford WPCA represents grant funds received and transferred to the
General Fund. These funds were used to repay long-term debt borrowed by the General Fund for
work completed on the wastewater treatment plant renovation project.

Interfund balances represent amounts recognized but not yet received by the appropriate funds. The
composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Due To:
General  Nonmajor
Due From: Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ - $ 38268 $ 38,268
Nonmajor Funds 52,578 - 62,578

$ 62578 § 38268 $ 100,846

interfund receivable balances represent amounts held in the General Fund for the Municipal Reserve,
Historic Preservation and Community Investments. Interfund payable balances represent balances
owed to the General Fund from the School Cafeteria Fund for reimbursement for payroli costs.
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Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Govemmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings & Improvements
Land Improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles
Machinery & Equipment
Furniture & Fixtures
Total capital assets, being depreciated

L ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & impravements
Land Improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles
Machinery & Equipment
Furniture & Fixtures

Total accumulated depreclation

Total capital assets, being depreclated
Gavemmeanial Aclivites capilal assels, nef

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assels not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Process

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Machinery & Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery & Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business Aclivilies capifal assels, net

Beginning Ending

Balances increases Decresses Balances
$ 5441480 3 - % - § 5441,480
3,372 608,129 - 611,501
5,444,852 608,128 - 6,052,081
19,213,460 131,830 - 18,345,380
555,772 27,917 - 583,689
7,768,766 - - 7,768,766
1,414,455 - - 1,414,455
1,153,788 14,760 - 1,168,538
130,171 - - 130,171
30,236,412 174,597 - 30,411,009
11,810,508 231,822 - 12,142,330
80,782 29,250 - 80,032
5,742,886 203,687 - 6,036,573
1,175,566 B5,534 - 1,261,100
1,029,652 48,753 - 1,078,408
80,930 10,205 - 81,135
20,000,324 699,251 - 20,608,575
10,236,088 {524,654) - 9,711,434
% 15680940 % 83475 § - § 15,764,415
11,507 - - 11,607
6,303,132 - {6,303,132) -
5,314,639 - {6,303,132) 11,607
6,366,616 8,046,143 - 14,412,759
8,366,616 8,046,143 - 14,412,759
2,067,697 262,894 - 2,330,591
2,067,697 262,894 - 2,330,591
4,298,019 7,783,248 - 12,082,188
$ 10613558 § 7,783249 $ (6,303,132) § 12,093,675
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General Government $ 382,182
Public Safsty 9,817
Highway 105,664
Planning & Development 16,005
Health & Welfare 11,844
Recreation 23,329
Education 150,410

Total $ 609,251

Business-type activities

Water & Sewer $ 262,894

The Town has active construction projects as of June 30, 2011. The year-end total accumulated

construction cosis were:

Salt Shed
Parking Lot Brown's Corner
Design Services Antolini School

2010 Additions Reductions 2011
5 3372 $ 344,791 % - 3 348,163
- 40,600 - 40,600
- 23,175 - 23,175
5 3,372 3 408,566 $ - 3 411,938

The Salt Shed project has a total project cost of $383,853, which is partially funded by a STEAP
Grant. Construction has begun for the Parking Lot at Brown's Corner and an additional $50,000 has
been appropriated for the subsequent fiscal year, however no confracts have been awarded. The
School Design services are part of a preliminary phase. No construction contracts are in place.
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Long-Term Obligations

General Obligation Bonds are direct obligations and pledge ihe full faith and credit of the town. These
bonds generally are issued as 10 and 20-year serial bonds with equal amounts of principal maturing
each year. The funds were used for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. BANs
and bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities. The General Fund
has historically been used to liquidate other long-term liabilities related to governmental activities.
The WPCA liquidates the long-term liabilities related to business-iype activities. The September 15,
2010 USDA Note will be repaid by the General and WPCA funds.

Original Principal
Interest Date of  Date of Amount at Qutstanding
Rate Issue Maturity Issuance June 30, 2011
Governmental Activities:
Bond - Open Space 3.0 09/15/08 09/15M3 § 438,000 3 292,000
Bond - Bakernville 2.5t042 09/01/03 08/01/13 1,150,000 300,000
Bond - Town Hall/Refunding 4.0104.875 04/15/99 04/15/18 4,275,000 1,700,000
Bond - Open Spaca/N.H. Elementary 401t06.0 02/01/07 03/01/27 3,187,000 2,550,000
Bond Anticipation Note 1.5 10/15/09  Q9/15M0 8,900,000 -
USDA WPCA Note 3.25 09/15/10  09/15/40 3,594,000 3,584,000

Total Governmental Bonds & Notes $ 21,544 000 % 8,436,000

Original Principai
interest Date of Dateof Amount at Outstanding
Rate Issue  Maturity Issuance  at June 30, 2010
Business-Type Activities:

Bond - Water System 491075 111585 111515 $ 480,000 % 105,000
Loan - Prospect Street Sewers 4.5 07/116/96 07/16/26 96,300 51,360
Loan - Water System Improvements 4.5 a7119/00  07/19/40 591,360 523,312
Loan - Water System Improvements 4.5 06/27/02 08/27/42 165,730 148,946
Total Business-Type Bonds & Notes § 1,333,380 $ 828,618

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2011, are as follows:

July 1, June 30, Due Within
2010 Additions Reductions 2011 One Year
Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences $ 401860 % 5172 § - % 407,032 & 40,458
Pension Benefit Obligation 144,874 - (324) 144,550 -
BAN 8,900,000 - {8,900,000) - -
G.0. Bonds 5,443,000 - (601,000) 4,842,000 601,000
USDA WPCA Note - 3,594,000 - 3,584,000 -
Total $14,880,734 $3,609,172 § (9,601,324) § 8,987,582 $ 641,458
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In addition, the Town also reports a premium associated with bond issuance In the Governmental
activiies non-current liabilities. The bond premium was reported at $967, net of $2,254 amortization,
at year end.

July 1, June 30, Due Within
2010 Additions Reduclions 2011 One Year

Business-type Activities
Loans $ 737,251 $ - § 13,633 $ 723618 § 14,103
G.O. Bonds 130,000 - 25,000 105,000 25,000
Total 8 867,251 § - 3 38633 § 828618 § 39103

Interest Expense
No interest was capitalized during the year. Inferest expense was charged to functions/programs of
the primary government as follows:

2011
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 264,456
Education 78,714

Total interest expense-Governmental Activities $ 343,170

Business-Type Activifies:
Water Pollution Control Authority $ 40,037

Total interest expense-Business-Type Activites § 40,037

Debt Service Requirements
Debt service requirements on long-term debt at June 30, 2011, are as follows:

Year Governmental aclivities Business-type activities
Ending Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 601,000 313,508 39,103 38,813
2013 596,000 280,580 34,592 36,782
2014 535,650 269,084 35,105 34,821
2015 443,271 246,563 35,640 33,038
2016 455,977 227,696 36,199 31,132
2017-2021 1,913,663 B65,748 90,306 138,140
2022-2026 1,405,800 570,639 108,587 116,171
2027-2031 822183 342,104 118,523 90,583
2032-2036 765,280 221,995 143,702 62,047
2037-2041 897,178 89,287 178,484 28,673
2042-2045 - - B,377 380
Total $ 8,436,000 $3437.212 $ B28,618 $ 608,680
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During the year, the Town received long-term financing from the U.8. Department of Agriculture for
$3,594,000. The Town has an arrangement with the New Hartford WPCA to repay the loan with g
61/39 split. The NHWPCA will repay 61% of the loan and the Town will repay 39%. The note requires
interest only payments of $116,805 due September 15, 2011 and September 15, 2012, then requires
principal and interest payments of $197,455 due annually from September 15, 2013 through 2040,
The final payment of $198,845 is due September 15, 2040. The interest rate on the note is 3.25%.

Overlapping Debt

New Hartford is a member of the Regional School District No. 7, along with the Towns of
Barkhamsted, Colebrook, and Norfolk. New Hartford's scheduled payment to the School District is a
pro rata share of 48.24%, which is based upon student enrollment.  The Town's portion of the bond
principal for Regional School District No. 7 is as follows: '

Principal
Bonds Quistanding $5,823,000
Town's Pro Rata % 48.24%
Town's Share $3,139.834

Prior-Year Defeasance of Debt
In prior years, the Town of New Hartford, CT defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an imevocable trust to provide for all fulure debt service

payments on the old bonds.

Accordingly, the frust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
Town of New Hartford, CT's financial statements. On June 30, 2011, the Town no longer has any
defeased debt.

NOTE 4 — OPERATING LEASES

The Town has entered into several lease agreements for equipment. These leases require monthly
payments from $124 to $539. These leases expire ranging from August 2011 to October 2013. Total
lease expense for 2011 was $31,341.

Future minimum lease payments under current agreements are as follows:

Year Amount
2012 27,927
2013 13,584
2014 1,412

NOTE 5 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Town issued bonds and notes to finance improvements to its water pollution control authority,
which operates the government's water and sewage treatment plants, pumping stations, and
collections systems., The New Hariford Water Pollution Control Authority is reported as the sole
enterprise fund. Because both the water and sewer activity is recorded in the same fund and financial
activity Is blended, segment information for each activity is not presented. Summary financial
information for the sewer department is presented in the proprietary fund statements on pages 24-26.
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NOTE 6 —~ PENSION PLAN

Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

Plan Description - The Town of New Hartford, CT Retirement Plan (the Plan) is a single-employer,
defined benefit, noncontributory pension plan administered by the Town of New Hartford, CT. The
Plan provides retirement and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Town of New
Hartford, CT retains the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. The Plan is considered
to be part of the Town of New Hartford, CT's financial reporting entity and is included in the Town's
financial reports as a Pension Trust Fund. The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial

report.

Plan Benefits - Under the Plan, employees are 100% vested after 5 years of credited service,
Employees who retire at normal retirement age 65 receive a retirement benefit for life of 1.25% times
credited service (max 40) of the final average compensation for the high five years out of the final ten.
A surviving spouse of a participant, who dies after five years of service, will receive a death benefit
equal to 50% of the benefit, which the deceased employee was (or would have been) eligible for at
early retirement (age 55 with ten years of service). Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with terms of the plan.

Funding Palicy - The contribution requirements of the Town are established and may be amended by
the Board of Selectmen, as suggested by the actuarial valuations. The Town currently contributes at
the actuarially determined rate; the current rate is’ 12.8% of annual covered payroll. Employees do
not contribute to the Plan. Cosls to administer the plan are paid by the Town out of the General Fund,
and are not included in the actuarially determined contribution. Investment management fees are

paid out of the pension trust.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension QObligation - The Town's annual pension cost and net pension
obligation o the Plan for the current year were as follows:

6/30/11

Anntal Required Confribution $ 173,341
Interest on Net Pension QObligation 11,590
Adjustment to Annual Required Contributions {11,914)
Annual Pension Cost 173,017
Confributions Paid (173,341)

Decrease in Net Pension Obligation (324)
Net Pension Obligation, Beginning 144,874
Net Pension Obligation, Ending $ 144,550

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2009
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Significant actuarial assumptions used
include (1) rate of return on investments of 8.0% per year, (2) projected salary increases of 4.5% per
year, including inflation, and (3) a retirement age of 65. The actuarial value of assets was determined
using a value calculated using a 4-year smoothing method at 25% per year limited to be within 80% to
120% of market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level
dollar method on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2003 was 30 years.
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Historical Trend Information - Historical trend information provides information about the Plan's
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Three-year historical trend
information is presented in the following table:

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation
Three-Year Trend information

Annual Percentage Net
Pansion of APC Pension Actual
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC) Contributed  Obligation  Contribution
June 30, 2009 143,493 108.3% 145,199 161,834
June 30, 2010 173,016 100.2% 144,874 173,341
June 30, 2011 173,017 100.2% 144,550 173,341

Classes of Employees Covered and Current Membership — All employees (except those covered by
the State of Connecticut Teachers Retirement System) at least 25 years of age, hired before age 60
and having five years of credited service are eligible. One year of credited service is earned for each
calendar year during which 1,000 hours is worked. Employees hired after 7/1/79 are 100% vested
after ten years. Current membership consists of the following:

Active plan members 39

Retired and beneficiaries receiving benefits 21

Terminated plan members entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits

Total plan participants

I8 18

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting - Financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employer and plan member contributions are recagnized in the period that the contributions are due.

Benefits are recognized in the period owed.

Method Used to Value Investments - Plan investments are reported using a 4-year smoothing method
at 25% per year limited to be between 80% to 120% of market value. Short-term investments are
reportad at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued
at the last reporied sales price. Investmenis that do not have an established market are reported at
astimated fair values.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the Plans as of June 30, 2011 (the most recent aciuarial date) is as follows:

Actuarial

Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liabllity (AAL} Unfunded Precentage

Acluarfal Velue of Entry Age AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assels Normal {UAAL} Ratio Payroll Payroli
Dale {A) {B) (B-A} {A/B) {C) {b-a)/c)

Employee Retiremant Plan
July 1, 2009 1,601,502 2,734,724 1,133,222 58.6% 1,360,722 83.3%
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The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incarporate the potentiaf
effects of legal or contractual funding limitations.

Required Supplementary Information - Six-year historical frend information for the pension plan
presenting the schedules of funding progress and employer contributions is presented as
supplamentary schedules following the notes to the financial statements, and presents multi-year
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

The Town is subject to the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions; howaver, it does not offer
any postemployment bensfits other than the pension, and has been advised it has no OPEB liability.

Teacher's Retirement System

Certified teachers in the Town of New Hariford, CT are eligible to participate in the State of
Connecticut's Teacher's Retirement System, a muitiple-employer, public employee's retirement
system. The Town does not contribute to the system nor does it have any legal obligation for
benefits. A member who completes 10 years of Connecticut public school service is eligible for a
vested benefit commencing at age 60. Members are required to contribute 7.25% of their annual
salary to the system as required by section 10-183b(7) C.G.S. The State contributes amounis based
on actuarial estimates. The State's aggregate contribution 1o the plan for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011 for all participating local governments was $581,593,216. The amount of the contribution
allocable to the Town was estimated to be $556,212 and the "on-behalf” payment has been
recognized as a government grant and an education expenditure In the General Fund. For the year
ended June 30, 2011, teachers for the Town of New Hartford, CT contributed $268,242 to the plan.
The funding level was determined based on an actuarial valuation of the plan as a whole, which does
not provide actuarial information on an individual Town basis.

NOTE 7 — OTHER MATTERS

Risk Management
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related fo torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of

assets; efrors or omissions; injuries to employees, or acts of God, The Town purchases commercial
insurance to cover most potential risks of loss. Neither the Town nor its insurers have setiled any
claim within the past year, which have exceeded the Town's insurance coverage. There were no
significant changes in coverage from the prior year, and no setilements have exceeded insurance
coverage in the last thres years.

The Town belongs to the Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), a public entity
risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for a
comprehensive workers' compensation insurance program through its workers' compensation pool.
The Town pays an annual premium to the pool for its coverage. The agreement for the formation of
CIRMA provides that the poo! will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure
through commercial companles for claims in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured eveni to an
unlimited excess limit. The pooling agreement allows CIRMA to make additional assessmenis to
make the pool seli-sustaining. The Town cannot estimate the amount of such additional assessments
and has not been notified that andassessments are forthcoming. CIRMA publishes its own financial
report, which can be obtained from: CIRMA, 900 Chapel Street, New Maven, CT.
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Contingencies

The Town participates in Regional Refuse District No. 1, a transfer station that was formally a landfill.
The District has been informed that its landfill is on the Supesfund list and has been named a
potentially responsible party by the Environmental Protection Agency. The District has settled its
liability for the Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study, and the EPA has approved a long-term
natural attenuation and monitoring program as the final remedy for the site, The annual financial
obligation for this long-term work was funded by amounts obtained in grant funds and assessed {o all
PRP’s and set aside in a trust fund for these actlivities. At this point, it is premature to estimate the
final cost of the program, as the total cost of post closure care is an estimate and subject to changes
resulting from inflation, deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws and regulations. The
towns served by the District are required to pay any shorifall in the District's budget. The Town of
New Hartford, CT is responsible for approximately 30% of any such shortfall.

NOTE 8 — FUND BALANCES

The following balances were assigned at June 30, 2011:

General Fund:

Subsequent Year Budget $ 144,979
Return of Settlement Funds 147,833
Capital Improvements 171,500
Debt Service Fund 46,699
New Hartford Day 1,674
School Cafeteria 3,000
Recreation Fund 67,089
Cemetery Fund 69,805

Total $ 652,578
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Fiscal
Year
2011

2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD

Schedule of Employer Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Contributions

$

Employer

173,341
173,341
161,834
166,086
142,135
108,718
103,693

Annual
Required

Contribution

$ 173,34
173,341
149,846
149,846
142,135
142,135
104,643

See accountant's report.
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Percentage

Contributed

100%
100%
108%
111%
100%
76%
99%



Supplemental, Combining,
and Individual Fund
Statements and Schedules
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General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General
Fund budget is legally adopted at the Annual Town Meeting. The General Fund utilizes the
modified accrual basis of accounting.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD Page 1 of 6
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
For the Year Endad June 30, 2011

Original Amended
Budgsi Budgset Actual Quer/(Under}
Revenues -
Taxes
Property Taxes $16,380,720 $ 16,380,720 & 16,556,980 & 276,260
Proparty Taxes - Prior Years 150,000 150,000 242168 92,168
Interast and Lien Fees 80,000 80,000 130,789 50,789
Total Taxes 16,610,720 16,610,720 17,029,937 419,217
Fees, Fines, and Permits
Licenses and Parmits 1,000 1,000 2,460 1,480
Caopy Machine Fees 10,000 10,000 12,318 2,318
Town Cletk Feas 100,000 100,000 89,846 {10,154)
Building Inspector Feas 45,000 45,000 62,267 17,267
Zoning & Wetlands Feas 8,400 8,400 6,965 (1,435)
Buming Offlcial Fees 1,300 1,300 4,805 595
Parking Tickats Fees 380 380 250 {130)
Total Fees, Fines, and Parmlts 166,080 166,080 176,001 9,921
Intergovernmental Revenue
Telephone access line tax 43,224 43,224 20,333 {22,891)
Town Aid for Roads 135,938 135,938 136,746 a08
Lizu of taxes-State-Owned Property 19,739 19,739 19,852 113
LOCIP Grant 62,652 62,652 - (62,652}
Lisu of taxes-Manui. Pllot 133,212 133,212 110,584 (22,628)
Lieu of taxes-Veteran 3,545 3,545 3,414 (131)
Lieu of taxes-Eiderly 36,250 36,250 30,621 (5,629)
Lieu of taxes-Disabled 478 478 480 2
School construction - - 60,257 60,257
Adult Education 2,335 2,335 2,395 60
Peguot Grant 18,473 18,473 19,190 717
ECS Grant 3,143,902 3,143,902 3,150,789 6,887
STEAP Grant - - 199,694 199,694
Edueation Fass-through Grants 230,603 230,603 225,890 (4,713)
School Transporation 57,558 57,558 40,479 (17,079)
Specfal Education - - 45,876 45,876
Total intergovernmental Revenues 3,887,809 3,887,909 4,066,600 178,691
Cther Revenues
fAental Income 42,849 42,849 45,901 3,052
Shared Services 15,040 15,040 - (15,040)
Student Tultion 11,047 11,047 3,759 {7,248)
Surplus Infastructure Reserve 30,000 30,000 - {30,000)
Miscellaneous 62,500 62,500 5,254 (57,246}
Tolal Other Ravenues 161,438 161,436 54,954 {106,482}

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD Page2of 6
Schedule of Revenves and Expendilures - Budgel and Astual
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2011

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Over/{Under)
Investment Earnings
Short-Term Interest $ 20,000 § 20,000 § 16,183 $ (8,817)
Total Investment income 20,000 20,000 16,183 (3.817}
Surplus to Finance Budget 355,733 355,733 " {355,733)
Total Revenues 21,201,878 21,201,878 21,343,675 141,797
Expenditures
General Government
First Selectman 65,310 65,310 565,310 -
Senior Bookkeaper 47,081 47,083 47,083 -
Bookkeeper Ass't 12,574 5,648 9,648 -
Admin. Assl./Welfare Admin. 47,081 47,083 47,083 -
Overlimef Substitules 4,000 1,277 1,277 -
Town Hall Janltorial Service 17,000 15,138 15,139 -
Adminisirative Expenses 8,539 5,288 5,288 -
Office Supplies and Equipment 18,000 18,625 18,625 -
Town Hall Maintenance and Utilities:
Telephone 13,500 8,070 9,070 -
Heating 13,399 16,921 16,921 -
Electricity 41,402 46,64 46,641 -
Other Utilitles 7,000 7,756 1,756 -
Computer Maintenance 18,250 19,312 18,312 -
Interior Maintenancs 39,000 36,8685 22,230 14,635
Insurance
Liabliity and Property 70,304 69,982 69,952 -
Workers' Compensalion 107,200 107,200 93,420 13,780
Panslon 101,038 99,200 98,666 534
Town's Share of FICA 101,000 106,858 106,958 “
Unemployment 15,000 . 4,302 (4,302)
Heallh 485,203 445,924 426,178 19,746
Longevity Pay 3,536 3,224 3,224 -
Town
Aftomey 30,000 28,621 13,341 15,280
Enginear 25,000 25,783 25,783 -
Tax Gollector:
Salary 48,570 48,570 18,570 -
Assistant 15,000 17,395 17,385 -
Data Processing 7,600 7,433 7,433 -

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORE Page3 of 6
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures ~ Budgst and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Original Amended
Budnet Budaget Actual Over/tUndern)
Supplies and Expenses g 7.200 % 5,283 & 5,283 & -
Collecticn Expense 2,500 2,045 2,045 -
Assassor.
Salary 47,138 41,423 27,186 14,237
Assessor's Glerk 39,822 39,822 39,822 -
Data Processing 13,075 15,876 15,876 -
Supplies and Expenses 4,095 4,095 4,057 38
Probate 3,850 4,626 4,626 -
Elections 39,111 39,11 34,476 4,635
Referendums 13,215 13,215 3,674 8,541
Board of Finance '
Supplies and Expenses 2,280 1,433 1,433 -
Audit 24,000 25,450 25,450 -
Town Reports 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Treasurer's Salary 68,367 6,367 6,366 1
Town Clerk:
Salary 55,633 55,633 53,799 1,834
Clerical Salary 32,760 32,760 34,576 {1.816)
Supplies and Expenses 36,079 32,361 32,361 -
Town Clerk Training 746 690 630 -
Total General Government 1,690,458 1,627,508 1,539,365 88,143
Public Safety
Constables 154,888 158,320 158,320 -
Constables - Overiime 6,000 4 685 4,685 -
Resldent State Troopers 158,700 168,283 169,283 -
Vehicle Expense 7,000 7,696 7,696 -
Supplies and Expensas 5,450 4,829 4,829 -
Sirest Lights 25,191 241114 24,111 -
Fire Deparimeni:
Fira Marshal 16,000 11,220 11,220 -
Deputy Fire Marshal 1,000 - - -
Fire Marshal Vehicle 1,800 1,800 1,800 -
Burning Official 1,300 1,620 1,620 -
Animal Controi Fund 14,000 13,521 13,521 -
Local Emergency Planning 6,060 8,356 8,366 -
Litehfield County Dispatch 67,816 68,424 68,424 -
Paramedic Iniercept 46,117 46,117 44,232 1,885
Ambulance Association 110,000 110,000 55,000 55,000
Total Puhblic Safety 621,322 820,992 573,107 56,885
Highways
Wages 485,921 487,421 487,421 -
Supplies and Expenses 40,000 81,270 81,270 -

Sea accountant's report,
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD Page 4 of 5
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Original Amendad
Budget Budaget Actual Ovarf{tnder)
Equip. Maint. and Repair $ 48,3580 & 97,872 & 57,872 & -
Gas, Grease, and Qi) 56,729 83,102 83,102 -
Telephone 2,500 1,600 1,600 -
Heating Ol 9,954 12,329 12,359 -
Electrlcity 6,663 7,793 7,793 -
Tree Removal 20,000 15,575 15,575 -
Road Malnt. and Improvement 115,000 113,067 113,067 -
Snow Sand 75,000 101,010 101,010 -
Snow SalyLiquid Calcium 75,000 71,658 71,658 -
Aoad Sweeping/Catchbasin Clean : 12,600 1,540 1,540 -
Asphalt/Bituminous Paving 150,000 150,000 150,000 -
Crack and Chip Seal 270,000 270,000 270,000 -
Total Highway 1,367,117 1,494,307 1,494,307 -
Planning and Development
Bullding Inspector 30,280 32,555 32,555 -
Building Depariment Expense 3,450 4171 4371 -
Zoning:
Officer 83,731 42,074 42,074 -
Land Use Administrative Assistant - 8,385 B,3B5 -
Zoning Secrefary 7,800 1,438 1,438 -
Printing Supplies and Expenses 8,000 8,000 7,923 77
Legal and Professional Fees 48,000 44,046 44,046 -
Engineer Fess 2,000 - - -
Town Planner 1,000 - - -
lnland Wetlands 3,000 3,182 3,182 -
Litchfietd Co. Soil Conservation 1,725 1,725 1,725 -
Total Planning and Development 168,986 145,576 145,499 77
Health and Welfare
Farmington Valley Health Dislrlet 28,584 28,594 28,594 -
Foothills Visiting Nurse . 30,606 30,6806 30,136 470
Regional Refuse Disposal 262,774 205,885 205,885 -
Mesals on Wheels 2,602 2,602 2,602 -
Agent for the Elderly 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Total Health and Welfare 325,576 268,587 268,217 470
Libraries
N. H, Free Public Library 214,000 214,000 214,000 -
Bakerville Library 45,000 45,000 45,000 -
Total Libraries 255,000 259,000 259,000 -
Sea accountant's repar.
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TOWHN OF NEW HARTFORD

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Aclual

Parks and Recreation
Recrsation Director
Seasonal Help
General Resraation
Cantracted Services
Sports Allocations
Propane

Total Parks and Recreation

Debt Service
Princlpal
Irderest

Total Debl Service

Commisslons/Other Agencies
Conservation Commissicn
Open Space Board
Board of Tax Review
New Hartiord Day
Historic District Commlssion
Senigr Citizens
Northwest Transportation
Historical Soclety
Litchfield Hils CEO
Coniingency Fund
Community Club
Town Hill Cemetery
Susan B. Anthony Project
Winchester Youth Service
Economic Development
Standiiit Cove
Torrington Water Co. Hydrants
CCM

Total Commissions/Other Agencies

Capital Expenditures
Brown's Corner
Box Cuivert Winchester Road Bridge
Town Hill Cametary
Technology
Salt Shed
DECD-Salt Shed
Park & Recreation Capital
Town Hall Equipment Replacement
BOE Capital Projects

Total Caplial Expenditures

for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page 50i 6

Original Amended
Budast Budaet Actusl Over/(Under)
41,263 41,263 41,263 -
3 6,000 & 6,751 6,850 % (99)
2,500 259 259 -
33,885 32,526 30,509 2,017
4,000 4,000 1,000 3,000
3,958 6,807 6,807 -
91,6806 91,606 86,688 4,918
455 500 455,500 455,000 500
207,655 207,655 207,655 -
863,155 663,165 662,655 500
3,500 3,500 727 R773
3,500 - - -
5,000 5,000 193 4,807
1,800 1,800 1,800 -
500 - - -
32,075 28,861 28,861 -
1,128 1,128 1,128 -
1,000 602 - 602
5,362 5382 5,382 -
8,000 3,788 3,281 o7
50 50} - 50
100 100 " 100
2,000 2,000 2,000 -
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
10,350 10,350 8,780 1,570
5,800 5,600 5,600 -
10,500 14,703 14,703 -
3,000 3,000 3,000 -
98,485 ap,874 BO,455 10,419
25,000 25,000 25,000 -
152,500 152,500 152,500 -
5,008 5,000 - 5,000
10,000 10,000 10,600 -
50,000 50,000 50,000 -
- - 198,163 (188,163)
25,000 25,000 25,000 -
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
150,000 150,000 149,705 295
427,500 427,500 620,368 (182,868)

See accountant's report.

54



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD Page B of6
Schadule of Revenues and Expendliures - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Over{/(Under)
Education
Board of Education:

Regular Elemantary 2,634,709 2,634,708 2,687,729 (53,020)
Special Education 1,115,891 1,135,881 1,304,840 {168,949)
Adult Education 6,610 6,610 6,610 -
School Health 111,615 111,616 106,050 5,565
Improvement of Instruction 36,875 36,875 31,814 5,061
Library 20,806 20,806 15,888 4,818
Technology 120,187 120,187 110,456 8,731
Board of Education 28,136 28,136 23,397 4,739
Central Office 260,712 260,712 260,479 233
School Offices 367,269 367,268 378,880 (11,611}
Plant Operations 726,081 726,081 650,700 75,381
Pupil Transportation 684,413 584,413 622,721 61,692
Cafeterla Shortfall - - 17,253 (17,253)
Communications 8,714 8714 3,080 5,624
Employee Benefils 1,456,845 1,456,845 1,378,876 77968
Total Board of Education 7,578,863 7,598,863 7,598,783 80
Aduit Education Cooperative 2,335 2,335 2,331 4
Reglona! School District #7 7.676,872 7,676,872 7,676,872 -
Education Pass-through Granis 230,603 225,603 197,381 28,222
Total Education 15,488,673 15,603,673 15,475,367 28,306
Total Expendilures $21,201,878 $21,201,878 5 21,205,028 § (3,150
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures § - 3 - § 138,647 § 138,647

See accountant's report.
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Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Special Revenue Funds
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes.

Debt Service Fund — A fund used to account for financial resources to be used for the payment of
compensated absences payable to retired or terminated employees.

New Hartford Day Fund — To account for the revenues and expenditures related to the "“New
Hartford Day” celebration.

Municipal Reserve Fund — To account for the financial resources to be used for major capital asset
constructions and/or purchase.

Dog Fund — To account for funds provided by the sale of dog licenses, sale of stray dogs, and
various fines levied against owners of stray dogs, as well as General Fund appropriations.

Historical Documents Fund — To account for funds related to the preservation of the Town’s records

School Cafeteria Fund — To separately account for the operations of the school cafeterias. The
Town's participation in the state-administered Federal Child Nutrition Program is reported in this fund.

Recreation Fund — To account for the revenues and expenditures involved in the administration of
recreational services.

Cemetery Fund — To account for funds used for the maintenance of local cemeteries.

Small Cities Housing Rehabilitation — To account for funds used to assist qualified citizens in
making improvements to their homes.

Open Space Fund — To account for funds related to the preservation of undeveloped land.

Capital Projects Funds
Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Community Investment formerly known as Farmland Preservation — To account for funds
restricted to preservation of farmland located within the town boundaries.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD Page 1 of 2
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

SPECiIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Debt New Historical
Sarvice Hartford Dog Documents School HRecreation
Fund Day Fund Fund Cafeteria Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 466099 $ 1674 F BO77 § - % 85578 § 78,161
Investments - - - - - -
State and federal grants receivable - —_— - - - -
Deferred Loans Receivabla - - - - - -
Interfund Receivablses - - - 9,150 - -
Inventories - - - - 3177 -
Total Assets % 46699 % 1674 § 8877 & 09,450 § 68,755 § 78,161
Liahilties and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - - - . - 11,072
Deferred Revenue - - - - - -
Interfund Payzablas - - - - 62,578 -
Dua ta State of Ct - - 5,091 - - -
Total! Liabilities - - 5,891 - 62,578 11,072
Fund Balances
Nonspendable - - - - 3177 -
Restricted - - - 9150 - -
Committed - - 2,986 - - -
Assigned 46,699 1,674 - - 3,000 67,089
Tota! Fund Balances ~ 46,699 1,674 2,086 9,150 6,177 67,089

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $§ 46,699 % 1674 &% 8977 $ 9,150 $ 68,755 § 78,161

See accountant's report.
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Assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Investmenis
State and federal grants receivable
Deferred Loans Receivable
Interfund Receivables
Inventorias

Total Assels

Liabilties and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Interfund Payables
Due to State of Ct

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricied
Committed
Assigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

Page 2 of 2

CAPITAL PROJECTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FUND
Small Ciies
Cemetery  Housing Open Capltal  Community
Fund Hehabllitation Space Projects  Investment Total
g 1,208 $ 54,486 $127,555 $ 187,958 § - 5 572388
68,507 - - - - 68,507
- 371,793 - - - 371,793
- - - 174 28,844 38,268
- - - - - 3,177
$ 68B05 $ 426279 $1275655 § 188,132 § 28,044 5 1,054,131
- - - - - 11,072
- - - - - 62,578
- - - - - 5,991
- - - - - 79,641
- - - - - 3,177
- 426,279 - - 28,944 464,373
- - 127,555 188,132 - 318,673
£9,805 - - - - 188,267
69,805 426,279 127,555 188,132 28,944 974,490
$ 69,805 § 4265279 5127555 5 188,132 § 28,944 § 1,054,131

See accountant's report.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Hevenues
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Charges for Services
Other Income
Investments earnings
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Cumrent
General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Commissions/agencies
Education
Debt Service
Capltal Expenditures
Total Expenditures
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendlttras
Other Financing Sources/{Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources/{Uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page 1 of 2

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNRS
Debt New ' Historical
Service  Hartford Dog Documents  School Recreation
Fund Day Fund Fund Cafeteria Fund

& - % 1670 & - $ 3,000 $ 32,871 B -
- - 12,155 2,822 117,464 162,076

. - - . 18,208 .

62 - - - - -

62 1,670 12,155 5,822 168,543 162,076

- 1,105 - 3,996 - -

- - 10,6558 - - -

- - - - - 173,871

- - - - 171,297 -

- 1,105 10,555 3,986 171,297 173,871
62 565 1,600 1.826 (2,754) (11,795)
(70,000) - - - - -
{70,000) - - - - .
{69,938) 565 1,600 1,826 (2,754) (11,795)

116,637 1,109 1,386 7324 8,931 78,8684
$ 46699 $ 1674 $ 2086 $ 9150 & 6477 § 67,089

' Bee accountant's report.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD

Combining Statement of Aevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues
Operating Grants and Caontributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Charges for Services
Other Income
Investments earnings
Totzl Revenues
Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Commisslonsfagencies
Education
Debt Service
Capital Expenditures
Total Expanditures
Excessf{Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
Transfers in
Transfars out
Total Other Financing Sources/{Uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund bslanees - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Nonmajor Governmeantal Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page2of 2

CAPITAL PROJECTS
SPECIAL AEVENUE FUNDS FUND
Small Cities
Cemetery  Housing Open Capital  Community
Fund Behabilitation Space Projects Invesiment Total
% - % 182,983 § - B - & - % 220,524
- - 21,000 8,201 - 30,201
- - - - 4,464 298,981
- - - - - 18,208
11,972 63 362 1,194 - 13,653
11,972 183,046 21,362 10,395 4,464 581,567
- 32,430 - - - 37,531
- - - - - 10,555
- - - - - 173,871
3,945 - - - - 3,945
- - - - - 171,297
. - 159,140 - - 159,140
- - - 413,273 - 413,273
3,045 32,430 159,140 413,273 - 969,612
B,027 150,616 (137,778}  (402,87B) 4,464 (388,045)
- - 70,000 277,500 - 347,500
- - - {3,372) - (73,372)
- - 70,000 274,128 - 274,128
B,027 150,616 {67,778) (128,750) 4,464 (113.917)
61,778 275,663 195,333 316,882 24,480 1,088,407
$69805 $ 426,279 § 127555 5188132 $ 28044 § 974,490

See accountant's report.
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Fiduciary
Funds

Fiduclary Funds are used to account for asseis held by the Town in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations or other governments.

Pension Trust Fund — To account for investments and related activity for the pension accounts
funded on behalf of Town employees.

Agency Funds

Driveway Permits — To account for cash and investments held by the Town to ensure
compliance with specifications and regulations with respect to various building projects and

improvements.

Zoning Permits — To account for cash and investments held by the Town 1o enstre
compliance with specifications and regutfations with respect to various building projects and

improvements.

Student Activities Fund — To account for monies from various self-funding school activity
funds.
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Combining Statement of Changes in Asseis and Liabilities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Driveway Parmits

Assets:
Cash
Total Assets
Liabilities
Fiduciary Deposlis
Total Liabilities

Zoning Permits

Assels:
Cash

Total Assets
Lizbilities
Fiduciary Deposits
Total Liabilities

Student Activities Fund

Assels:
Cash

Total Assets
Liabilities
Fiduciary Deposits
Total Liabilities

Total Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash
Total Assets
Liabllities
Fiduciary Deposits
Total Liabilitles

TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Agency Funds

Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions

Deductions

Balance
June 30, 2011

$ 42592 § 7814 § 4502 § 45,904
42,592 7,814 4,502 45,904
42,692 7,814 4,502 45,904

$ 42592 § 7814 & 4502 % 45,904

$ 5055 $10,733 § 14,600 & 2,088

5,955 10,733 14,600 2,088
5,855 10,733 14,600 2,088

$ 59855 $10,733 § 14600 3 2,088

$ 13,710 §$45362 § 41550 § 17,522
13,710 45,362 41,550 17,522
13,710 45,362 41,550 17,522

$ 13,710 $45362 § 41,550 § 17,522

$ 62,257 $63903 % 60,652 § 656,514
62,257 63,909 60,652 85,514
62,257 63,500 60,652 65,514

$§ 62,257 $63909 B 60652 B 65,514

See accountant's report.
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Suppliemental
Schedules
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Schedule of Debt Limitation
For the Year Ended .June 30, 2011

Taotal Tax Collections - including interest and lien fees
Received by Treasurer % 17,043,808

Reimbhursement for revenue loss on:

Tax relief for elderly 31,102

Base $ 17,074,910
General Urban

Debt limitation: Purposes Schools Sewers Renewal

2 1/4 times base $38,418,548 $ - 3 - & -

4 1/2 imes base - 76,837,095 - -

3 3/4 times base - - 64,030,913 -

3 1/4 times base - - - 55,493,458
Total debt limitation 38,418,548 76,837,005 64,030,913 55,493,458
Indebtedness:

Bonds payable 3,043,725 1,798,275 105,000 -
Overlapping debt:

Regional School

District No. 7 - 2,809,015 - -

Total Indebtedness 3,043,725 4,607,290 105,000 -

Debt limitation in excess of
outstanding and authorized debt  $35,374,823  $72,229,805 $63,925913 § 55,493,458

NOTE:
In no case should this total Indebtedness exceed
seven times the base $17,074,910 or $119,5624,370.

See accountant's repart.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Annual Bonded Debf Maturity Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Fiscal

Year Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 626,000 $ 202,806 $ B28,896
2013 616,000 178,585 794,585
2014 475,000 155,879 630,879
2015 380,000 134,779 514,779
2016 390,000 117,418 507,418
2017 370,000 99,713 469,713
2018 370,000 82,910 452,910
2019 370,000 66,213 436,213
2020 160,000 54,850 214,850
2021 170,000 48,450 218,460
2022 170,000 41,650 211,650
2023 170,000 34,850 204,850
2024 170,000 28,050 198,050
2025 170,000 21,038 191,038
2026 170,000 14,026 184,026
2027 170,000 7.012 177,012

Total § 4,947,000 % 1,288,319 $ 6,235319

Unaudited
{See accountant's reponsﬁn financial statements)



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Annual Seli-Supporting Water and Sewer Debt Maturity Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Fiscal

Year Principal Interest Total
2012 3 14,103 3 102,701 % 116,804
2013 14,592 102,065 116,657
2014 63,495 101,404 164,899
2015 65,603 99,148 164,751
2016 67,785 96,819 164,604
2017 70,047 94,410 164,457
2018 72,388 81,922 164,310
2019 74.814 89,348 164,162
2020 77,326 86,688 164,015
2021 79,928 83,939 163,867
2022 82,624 81,096 163,720
2023 85,417 77,705 163,122
2024 88,310 75,115 163,425
2025 91,306 71,971 163,277
2026 94,410 68,719 163,129
2027 97,626 65,356 162,982
2028 87,748 61,875 158,623
2029 101,200 58,422 158,622
2030 104,777 54,845 159,622
2031 108,482 51,140 159,622
2032 112,322 47,300 159,622
2033 116,302 43,321 159,623
2034 120,425 39,198 159,623
2035 124 697 34,926 158,623
2036 129,124 30,4988 159,623
2037 133,712 25,971 159,623
2038 138,467 21,156 159,623
2039 143,395 16,228 159,623
2040 148,502 11,121 159,623
2041 152,714 5,830 158,544
2042 8,377 380 8,757

Total $ 2,880,018 $ 1,890,669 B 4,770,577

Unaudited
(See accountant's report on financial statemenis)

65



TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD
Long-Term Debt Ratios
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2011

1 Population 6,994
2 Net Taxable Grand List (10/1/09) $701,838,878
Estimated Full Value (70%) $1,002,626,969
3 Equalized Net Taxable Grand List (2008) $1,007,330,607
4 Money Income per Capita (1999) $30,429
Total Total Net Total Overall
Direct Debt Direct Debt Net Debt
§ 4947000 $ 4547000 & 7,756,015
Per Capita $707.32 $707.32 $1,108.95
Ratio to Net Taxable Grand List 0.70% G6.70% 1.11%
Ratio to Estimated Full Value 0.49% 0.49% 0.77%
Ralio 1o Equalized Net Taxable Grand List 0.49% 0.49% 0.77%
2.32% 2.32% 3.64%

Debt per Capita to Money Income per Capita

1 State of Cennecticut Municipal Fiscal Indicators, (citing State Department of Public Heaith)

2 Revalued 10/1/08
3 State of Connecticut Municipal Fiscal Indicators
4 State of Connecticut Municipal Fiscal Indicators, {citing the U. 8. Census 2000)

Unaudited
(See accountant's report on financial statements)
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Statistical Section Information

The objectives of statistical section information are to provide financial statement users with
additional historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using the information in the
financial statements, notes to financial statements, and required supplementary information to
understand and assess economic conditions.

Statistical section information is presented in the following categories:

Financial trends information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing
how financial pesition has changed over time.

Revenue capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing
the factors affecting the ability to generate own-source revenues (property taxes, charges
for services, etc.)

Debt capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing debt
burden and the ability to issue additional debt.

Demographic and economic information is intended 1) to assist users in understanding
the socioeconomic environment and 2} to provide information that facilitates comparisons
of financial statement information over time and among governments.

Operating information is intended to provide contextual information about operations and
resources to assist readers in using financial statement information to understand and

assess economic condition.

The accompanying tables are presented in the above order. Refer to the Table of Contents for
applicable page number locations.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD Table 10
Direct and Overlapping Governmeantal Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2011

Estimated
Estimated Shere of
Debt Percentage  Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding _Applicable’ Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes:

Ragional School District Number 7 % 5,823,000 48.24% § 2,808,015
Subtotal, overlapping debt 2,809,015
Town of New Hartford direct debt - 4,842,000
Total direct and overlapping debt 5 7651015

Sources: Enrollment data used to estimate applicable percentage provided by Regional School District
Number 7. Debt outstanding data also provided by Regional School District Number 7.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries

of the city. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governmants

that is borne by the residents and buslnesses of the Town of New Hartford. This procass recognizes that when
consldering the governmant’s abllity to Issue and repay long-term dabt, the entire debt burden borne by the
residents and businesses should be taken into account. Howaver, this does not imply that every taxpayer

s a resident, and therefora responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

"The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using student population. Applicable

percentages were estimated by determining the towns enrolled student population at Regional
School District Number 7 and dividing it by the student population at Regional School District Number 7
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD Table 11
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)

WPRCA Notes
Service Less: Net

Fiscal Charges Operating Availlable Debt Service

Year andOther Expenses Revenue Principal [Interest Coverage
2002 424 360 64 9 30 1.64
2003 540 324 216 11 37 4.50
2004 5 467 34 12 36 0.71
2005 503 462 41 11 37 0.85
2006 504 362 142 12 36 2,96
2007 508 484 24 12 36 1.50
2008 535 588 (53) 12 35 -1.13
2009 5587 493 64 13 34 1.36
2010 626 463 163 13 33 3.54
2011 618 837 {219) 14 26 -5.48

Note: Details regarding the government's outstanding debt can be found in the notes 1o
the financial statements. Sarvice charges and other includes Investment earnings.
Operating expenses do not include interest or depreciation.
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TOWN OF NEW HARTFQRD Table 12
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Personal Education
Income | Per Capita Level in
Fiscal {thousands | Personal | pMedian | Years of School | Unemployment
Year | Population’| ofdollars) | Income® | Age |Schooling | Enroliment’ Rate®
2011 6,970 5 254,182 | § 936,468 43 N/A 608 7.6%
2010 6,736 204,970 30,429 43 N/A 825 7.6%
2009 6,736 204,970 30,425 43 NIA 616 7.2%
2008 5,728 204,726 30,429 39 N/A 609 4,.9%
2007 6,736 204,970 30,425 39 N/A g1z 4186
2006 6,794 206,735 30,429 39 N/A 631 3.5%
2005 6,746 205,274 30,429 39 N/A 631 3.7%
2004 6,662 202,718 30,428 39 N{A 627 4.8%
2003 6,548 189,249 30,429 39 N/A 654 4.8%
2002 6,413 185,141 30,429 38 N/A 650 3.5%

1 State of Connecticut Department of Economic and Community Development

2 1.8 Bureau of Census (2010 most recent daia available)
3 gtate of Connectlcut Department of Labor

4 State of Connecticut Department of Education

Noie: The per capita personal incamne figures are based upon the U.S. Bureau of Census
compiled in 2010. The information contained in the Census Is the most recent data available.
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